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The Braniff Building is a ten-story buff-brick and limestone 
office building measuring 150' x 87' . The structure's architectural 
style is neo-classical. The lower two floors are sheathed with lime­ 
stone and feature a series of engaged columns.with quasi-corinthian 
capitals. The columns are terminated by a limestone architrave, ornate 
cornice, and dentil molding. The only modification is the curtain wall 
and glass added to the ground level in the 1950s.

The facade between rows of windows on the upper floors is filled 
in with buff-brick. Each bay has pairs of windows and limestone 
spandrels. The window units are aluminum and glass replacements. 
The top level is terminated by a series of limest'bne medallions, dentil 
molding,,, and, project ing cornice, providing a sense of balance with 
the lower two flo.ors. TJkie .limestone, ornamentation on ..this , structure is 
rarely used in modern construction.

The interior of the structure has been extensively remodelled. 
Today, the office complex is occupied by various commercial tenants.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Constructed in 1923 by Thomas E. Braniff, the Braniff Building 
is the legacy of one of Oklahoma City's most successful and influential 
businessmen. From his insurance and investment endeavors to his 
involvement in the growth of commercial aviation, Braniff affected 
the course of local, state, and national history. Moreover, the 
Braniff Building itself is significant' architecturally, for 'its 
neo-classical design was the product of Solomon Layton, Oklahoma's 
foremost architect from 1902 to 1943.

Thomas E. Braniff was born in 1883 in Salina, Kansas, to a 
pioneering family which moved to Oklahoma City in 1901. One year 
later, at the age of eighteen, young Thomas entered the insurance 
business. Braniff slowly increased his earnings until 1917 when he 
organized a loan company to complement his insurance firm. Thereafter, 
his fortunes increased, extending more than $7,000,000 in construction 
loans the first five years. In 1925 alone the total reached $8,000,000, 
making him one of the leading financiers in Oklahoma City. The 
construction boom in downtown Oklahoma City from 1919 to 1931, 
which left the city with its most important structures, was thus 
promoted by Thomas Braniff.

In 1922 Braniff initiated plans for a multi-storied office 
building,to house his varied business enterprises. He chose the 
corner of 3rd and Robinson as its location, which at that time 
was north of the Rock Island tracks and considered by most businessmen 
to be too far north of the main business district. Within ten years 
his decision was proven to be prophetic, for the business district 
shifted towards the north. To design his building, Braniff chose the 
architectural firm of Layton, Hicks, and Forsythe, for Solomon Layton 
was considered the foremost architect of public buildings in 
Oklahoma. To 1922 he had been responsible for several of the state's 
most attractive and efficient structures, most notable being the 
Skirvin Hotel (on the National Register), the Oklahoma State

(cont.)
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Capitol Building (on the National Register), Central High School 
(on the National Register), and sixteen county courthouses across 
the state. He would go on to design more than seventy-five public 
buildings in Oklahoma, earning him the distinction of being Oklahoma's 
most noted architect.

For the Braniff Building Layton chose a neo-classical limestone 
and brick design. The lower two floors were sheathed in limestone 
and ornamented with columns, capitals, and architraves. The facade 
of the upper eight levels consisted of rows of windows and buff-brick, 
which was terminated by a limestone cornice. It was a unique design 
combining a variety of building materials and architectural styles.

Braniff T s business career expanded even more after moving into 
the new building. The most noteworthy accomplishment, and one which 
brought benefits to himself, Oklahoma City, and the nation, was his 
association with the development of Braniff Airlines. Begun with 
only one five-place Stinson-Detroiter, the first Braniff flight took 
off on June 20, 1928, bound for Tulsa. In less than one year the 
company expanded to thirty-two planes, twenty pilots, seventy-five 
support personnel, and 5,000 route miles. By the? early 1940s the 
operations had increased to 270 employees, 10,000 route miles, and 
international flights.

This success story benefited Oklahoma City and the state as 
well as Braniff, for as the headquarters of this major commercial 
airlines, Oklahoma City grew into one of the nation's foremost 
aviation centers. By the late 1940s Oklahoma City hosted three 
airports, a major center of the Civil Aeronautics Administration, 
Tinker Airforce Base (the largest air depot in the U. S.), and 
several aircraft manufacturers. In 1973 a survey concluded that one 
of every six persons in Oklahoma City had direct relations with 
the aviation industry; this development was in large part due to 
Thomas E. Braniff.

Since 1954, when Braniff was killed in a plane wreck, the 
Braniff Building has changed hands several times. Presently, it 
is owned by Kerr-McGee Building Corporation. The building's 
significance, however, has not diminished, for Braniff's achievements 
and legacies remain as an important element in Oklahoma City's 
development. The building which he constructed stands as a monument to 
the man and the progressive philosophy he represented.
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the curb to a point parallel with the east wall of the building, which 
abuts with a parking garage to the east. Turn south and proceed along 
the east wall 170 f to the middle of the alley, which is approximately 
10' south of the building. Then proceed 97' along the center of the 
alley to the curb on Robinson Avenue. Then proceed north 170' along 
the curb to the original point of departure.


